
ARIZONA STATE SENATE 
47TH LEGISLATURE 

SECOND REGULAR SESSION 
 

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE ON 
FAMILY SERVICES 

 
DATE:  March 27, 2006 TIME:   1:30 p.m. ROOM:  SHR2 

 
CHAIRMAN: Senator Johnson VICE CHAIRMAN: Senator Verschoor 

  
ANALYST: Kim Martineau INTERN: Jessica Ripplinger 

 
 
COMMITTEE  
SECRETARY: 

 
Bill Ritz 

 

ATTENDANCE BILLS 

 

Committee Members Pr Ab Ex Bill Number Disposition 
Senator L. Gray X   HB 2094 DPA/SE 
Senator Rios X   HB 2319 DPA 
Senator Soltero X   HB 2559 DPA 
Senator Verschoor, Vice Chairman X   HB 2613 DP 
Senator Johnson, Chairman X   HB 2627 DPA 
    HB 2743 DP 
    HB 2810 DP 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Committee on Family Services 
 2  March 27, 2006 

Chairman Johnson called the meeting to order at 1:40 p.m., and attendance was taken. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Senator Johnson moved the minutes of March 20, 2006 be approved.   
Without objection, the minutes were approved as distributed. 

 
CONSIDERATION OF BILLS 
 
HB 2613 – education and training vouchers; appropriation – DO PASS 
 
Jessica Ripplinger, Family Services Research Intern, explained HB 2613. 
 
Representative Biggs further explained HB 2613. 
 
 Senator Gray moved HB 2613 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 
 The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 3-0-2 (Attachment 1). 
 
HB 2094 – joint legislative committee on homelessness – DO PASS AMENDED/ 
STRIKE EVERYTHING 
 
Kim Martineau, Family Services Research Analyst, explained the 1 page Johnson strike 
everything amendment dated 03/23/06 at 3:51 p.m. (Attachment A). 
 
Representative Hershberger further explained HB 2094 and answered questions posed by the 
Committee members. 
 
Bob Brutinel, Presiding Judge, Yavapai County, Arizona Judicial Council, testified in support of 
HB 2094 and answered questions posed by the Committee members. 
 
Senator Verschoor announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment B). 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved HB 2094 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved the 1 page Johnson strike everything amendment dated  
 03/23/06 at 3:51 p.m.  The motion CARRIED by voice vote. 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved HB 2094 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS, 
 recommendation.  The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 5-0-0 (Attachment 2). 
 
HB 2319 – department of economic security; continuation – DO PASS AMENDED 
 
Jessica Ripplinger, Family Services Research Intern, explained HB 2319 and the 5 line Johnson 
amendment dated 03/24/06 at 9:52 a.m. (Attachment C). 
 
Senator Johnson further explained the 5 line Johnson amendment dated 03/24/06 at 9:52 a.m. 
 



  Committee on Family Services 
 3  March 27, 2006 

Representative Hershberger further explained HB 2319 and stated he is opposed to the 5 line 
Johnson amendment dated 03/24/06 at 9:52 a.m but would support a five year continuation of DES.  
Representative Hershberger also answered questions posed by the Committee members. 
 
David Berns, Director, Department of Economic Security, testified in support of HB 2319, 
referring to a handout entitled “DES TOP TEN IMPROVEMENTS:  Safety and Self-Sufficiency 
Individuals and Families – 2003-2005” (Attachment D) and in opposition to the 5 line Johnson 
amendment dated 03/24/06 at 9:52 a.m.  Mr. Berns also answered questions posed by the 
Committee members. 
 
Mary Gill, Deputy Director of Operations, Department of Economic Security, answered 
questions posed by the Committee members. 
 
Janice Mickens, Program Administrator, Division of Children, Youth and Families, Department 
of Economic Security, answered questions posed by the Committee members. 
 
Kim Martineau, Family Services Research Analyst, explained what would transpire if the 
Department of Economic Security is continued for one year and answered questions posed by the 
Committee members. 
 
Bob Hanks, representing self, testified in opposition to HB 2319.  
 
Senator Verschoor announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment B). 
 
Senator Soltero asked if the 5 line Johnson amendment dated 03/24/06 at 9:52 a.m. can be 
withdrawn and amended on the Senate floor to five years. 
 
Senator Johnson stated the 5 line Johnson amendment dated 03/24/06 at 9:52 a.m. would not be 
withdrawn. 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved HB 2319 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved the 5 line Johnson amendment dated 03/24/06 at 9:52 a.m. 
 
Senator Verschoor stated he is willing to work on a floor amendment that would require DES to report 
their progress on the areas that have been identified as concerns to the Committee before their 
sunset is continued.  
 
 Senator Gray moved the following verbal amendment to the 5 line Johnson  amendment 
 dated 03/24/06 at 9:52 a.m. (Attachment E). 
 
 Page 1, line 1, strike “2007” insert “2008” 
 Line 2, strike “2007” insert “2008” 
 Line 3, strike “2008” insert “2009”  
 Line 4, strike “2006” insert “2006 and December 1, 2007” 
 
Kim Martineau explained the Gray verbal amendment and answered questions posed by the 
Committee members. 
 
 The motion CARRIED by voice vote. 



  Committee on Family Services 
 4  March 27, 2006 

 Senator Verschoor moved the 5 line Johnson amendment dated 03/24/06 at 9:52 a.m. 
 AS AMENDED.  The motion CARRIED by voice vote. 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved HB 2319 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS, 
 recommendation.  The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of  3-2-0 (Attachment 3). 
 
In explanation of her vote, Senator Rios stated “I fully understand it’s important to stay on top of our 
areas of concern with CPS.  I am very concerned that we’re going to divert a lot of attention that they 
should be in and are currently addressing the children and families, to have them further prepare 
reports that they’re already providing to the Auditor General and for that reason I vote no.” 
 
In explanation of his vote, Senator Soltero stated “Madam Chair, I really believe that we should have 
extended DES for five years.  We normally extend the agencies for ten years.  I think cutting DES by 
fifty percent was already quite a cut in time, Madam Chair, and then we’re saying we’re going to do it 
for two years, which is even less than half of the five.  Madam Chair, I don’t think that’s the right thing 
to do as I stated before.  I really think that we could have continued DES for five years and addressed 
the issues that everybody is concerned about, pinpoint the issues, and let’s get some answers to 
where we feel there’s problems in the Department and let’s address it in that manner instead of 
putting the whole Department into a continuation of only two years.  Madam Chair, I have to vote no.” 
 
In explanation of her vote, Senator Johnson stated “In the ten years that I have been here there’s 
consistently been problems, more so in the CPS arena.  I just feel like this particular agency needs to 
be under very strict scrutiny, as much as possible.  To go ahead and continue it for two years I think 
is being generous and I really really want them to get the message that they have a lot of work to do, 
a lot of work to do.  We really want to hold their feet to the fire and so I vote aye.” 
 
HB 2743 – developmental disabilities; cognitive disability – DO PASS 
 
Jessica Ripplinger, Family Services Research Intern, explained HB 2743 and answered questions 
posed by the Committee members. 
 
Representative Hershberger further explained HB 2743 and answered questions posed by the 
Committee members. 
 
Jay Doeshevsky, Self-Advocacy Coalition of Arizona, testified in support of HB 2743 and 
answered questions posed by the Committee members. 
 
Patricia Jones, representing self, testified in support of HB 2743. 
 
Mike Pliska, representing self, testified in support of HB 2743. 
 
Monica Cooper, representing self, testified in support of HB 2743. 
 
Sherri McClain, representing self, testified in support of HB 2743. 
 
Senator Verschoor announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment B). 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved HB 2743 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 
 The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 5-0-0 (Attachment 4). 



  Committee on Family Services 
 5  March 27, 2006 

In explanation of her vote, Senator Gray stated “For Jay, Patricia, Mike, Monica, and Sherri, thank 
you all for coming down and sharing your stories.  I think it is sad that sometimes people are very 
cruel and I hope that this bill helps because you certainly spoke here with dignity, I vote aye.”  
 
In explanation of her vote, Senator Rios stated “Thank you all for bringing this to our attention and I 
think helping us to realize how stigmatizing phrases can be and I vote aye.” 
 
In explanation of her vote, Senator Johnson stated “I really want to just thank Representative 
Hershberger, I think he may have already left.  I really kind of passed over this bill when it first came 
to my Committee.  I looked at it and thought well I don’t see that this does a lot but as he explained it 
to me and especially after sitting here and listening to all of you and what you’ve had to say that’s 
made a very big impression.  I’m really glad that we’ve gone ahead to hear this bill and I vote aye.” 
 
HB 2627 – vulnerable adults; financial exploitation – DO PASS AMENDED 
 
Jessica Ripplinger, Family Services Research Intern, explained HB 2627 and the 9 line Johnson 
amendment dated 03/24/06 at 4:28 p.m. (Attachment F).  Ms. Ripplinger also answered questions 
posed by the Committee members. 
 
Representative Downing further explained HB 2627. 
 
David Childers, America's Health Insurance Plans (AHIP), testified in support of HB 2627 and 
answered questions posed by the Committee members. 
 
Mike Fleishman, Attorney, Karp Heurlin Weiss, testified in support of HB 2627 and in opposition to 
the 9 line Johnson amendment dated 03/24/06 at 4:28 p.m.  Mr. Fleishman also answered questions 
posed by the Committee members. 
 
Senator Verschoor announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment B). 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved HB 2627 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved the 9 line Johnson amendment dated 03/24/06 at 4:28 p.m.   
 The motion CARRIED by voice vote. 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved HB 2627 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS, 
 recommendation.  The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 5-0-0 (Attachment 5). 
 
In explanation of her vote, Senator Gray stated “I think that the bankers should be involved and I put 
them on notice now on why they should not be.  I’ll run a floor amendment and I’ll vote aye for now.” 
 
In explanation of her vote, Senator Rios stated “I’ve been very concerned about exempting anyone to 
any extent while we’re talking about elder abuse but with that being said and with hopes that maybe 
we can undo this as well as adding in bankers I’ll vote yes at this point.” 
 
In explanation of his vote, Senator Verschoor stated “Maybe just a tad off the subject but I had a 
unique experience this weekend as I was going down to visit with my parents who are elderly and are 
having a hard time getting around to deal with that situation.  My dad got a phone call from a 
telemarketer, and I know this doesn’t address telemarketers.  It was somebody with the mortgage 
company and I sat there and listened to him talk to this person for a little while, coming to the idea 



  Committee on Family Services 
 6  March 27, 2006 

that he told the person he wasn’t interested, he wanted to end the discussion and had to tell this 
person three or four times before he finally hung up.  Sometimes I listen to these folks when they call 
me too and then I tell them I’m not interested and I hang up.  The remarkable thing was, because I’ve 
never experienced this myself, they called back.  They called back and my dad said don’t answer it 
they’re just calling back, so obviously this was not unusual for him.  So we didn’t answer it, the phone 
rang, we didn’t answer it, then the phone rang again and he said they’re just calling back don’t 
answer it.  This time I did pick up the phone and I said not interested please don’t call back and I 
hung up.  They called back again at which point I had to pull out the trump card and I said we’re not 
interested, if you call back again I want you to put us on the no call list, which I don’t support, but this 
is a good reason to support it, and I told the person if you call back again I will report you to the folks 
for calling back after we’ve told you that we’re not interested.  There are predators out there 
unfortunately and with that I vote aye.” 
 
HB 2559 – juvenile hearings; jury trials – DO PASS AMENDED 
 
Kim Martineau, Family Services Research Analyst, explained HB 2559, the 17 line Johnson 
amendment dated 03/24/06 a 4:03 p.m. (Attachment G), and the 9 line Johnson amendment dated 
03/24/06 at 4:06 p.m. (Attachment H). 
 
Senator Johnson further explained the 17 line Johnson amendment dated 03/24/06 a 4:03 p.m. and 
the 9 line Johnson amendment dated 03/24/06 at 4:06 p.m. 
 
Representative Anderson further explained HB 2559. 
 
Robin Scoins, Director, Arizona Family Rights Advocacy Institute, testified in support of HB 2559 
and answered questions posed by the Committee members. 
 
Jerry Landau, Legislative Liaison, Arizona Supreme Court, Administrative Office of the Courts, 
testified in opposition to HB 2559 and answered questions posed by the Committee members. 
 
Beth Rosenberg, Children's Action Alliance, testified in opposition to HB 2559. 
 
Bob Hanks, representing self, testified in support of HB 2559. 
 
Senator Verschoor announced the individuals who registered their position on the bill (Attachment B). 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved HB 2559 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
  
 Senator Verschoor moved the 9 line Johnson amendment dated 03/24/06 at 4:06 p.m. 
 The motion CARRIED by voice vote. 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved the 17 line Johnson amendment dated 03/24/06 a 4:03 p.m. 
 The motion CARRIED by voice vote. 
 
 Senator Verschoor moved HB 2559 be returned with an AS AMENDED, DO PASS, 
 recommendation.  The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 3-2-0 (Attachment 6). 
 
HB 2810 – utility assistance fund; administration – DO PASS 
 
Kim Martineau, Family Services Research Analyst, explained HB 2810. 



  Committee on Family Services 
 7  March 27, 2006 

Kathy Senseman, Corporate Public Affairs, Southwest Gas, testified in support of 2810 and 
answered questions posed by the Committee members. 
 
Cynthia Zwick, Executive Director, Arizona Community Action Association, testified in support 
of 2810 and answered questions posed by the Committee members. 
 
Janet Regner, representing self, testified in support of 2810 and answered questions posed by the 
Committee members. 
  
 Senator Verschoor moved HB 2810 be returned with a DO PASS recommendation. 
 
 The motion CARRIED with a roll call vote of 4-1-0 (Attachment 7). 
 
In explanation of his vote, Senator Verschoor stated “I am a little uncomfortable with this bill and I’m 
not sure how I’m going to vote for it on the floor and for that reason I’m going to vote no right now.” 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 5:10 p.m. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

        Bill Ritz 
                                                              Committee Secretary 
 
(Tapes and attachments on file in the Secretary of the Senate’s Office/Resource Center, Room 115.) 
 
 
 
 
 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.7
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


